

Carson City • El Dorado Hills • Fallon • Lake Tahoe • Reno

Carson City 308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200 Carson City, Nevada 89703 775.883.7077

August 23, 2023

City of Elko – Utilities Department 1751 College Avenue Elko, NV 89801

Subject:

CITY OF ELKO - EXIT 298 FORCE MAIN AND LIFT STATION

BID DOCUMENTS SUBMITTAL

To Mr. Dale Johnson:

Attached are the compiled contract documents for the City of Elko – Exit 298 Force Main and Lift Station project. This document includes but is not limited to the invitation to bid, technical specifications, and construction plans. For a more detailed list, see the table of contents on the following page.

The project is located along SR-535 beginning east of I-80 Exit 298 and terminating near Hot Springs Road. The primary scope of work includes a new 400 gpm sewer lift station and parallel sewer force mains with provisions for future buildout to 1,500 gpm. Lift station work includes site grading, installation of precast concrete wet well and dry pit structures with depths of approximately 20 feet; three 15 horsepower sewage pumps and discharge piping; yard piping, valves, and fittings, a flow meter and air valve vault; pig launching stations; electrical and controls; and all associated appurtenances. Force main work includes over 11,500 LF each of 6-inch and 10-inch HDPE piping, air valve assemblies, a waterline relocation, and connections to the City's existing gravity sewer system. The force main piping requires a trenchless crossing under SR-535 and open-cut construction within UPRR right-of-way.

Please note that the project has not yet received permits from NDOT and UPRR. The NDOT approval is anticipated by the end of the month, and we have not been able to make contact with UPRR staff regarding anticipated approval timelines.

08/24/23

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 775-883-7077.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Lesperance, P.E.

Group Manager

Lumos & Associates, Inc.



EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN AUGUST 2023

Prepared for:

City of Elko 1751 College Avenue Elko, NV 89801

CONSISTS OF:

BIDDING REQUIREMENTS
PROPOSAL FORMS
CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS



Prepared by: Lumos & Associates 308 N. Curry Street, Suite 200 Carson City, NV 89703 (775) 883-7077 www.lumosinc.com

Bid Set No.____



Table of Contents

1.0	INVITATION TO BID	2
2.0	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS	
2.0		
3.0	PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT	17
	ARTICLE ONE - DESCRIPTION OF WORK	17
	ARTICLE TWO	19
	ARTICLE THREE - STARTING AND COMPLETION DATES	19
	ARTICLE FOUR - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	20
	ARTICLE SIX - RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR	22
	ARTICLE SEVEN - INSURANCE	25
	ARTICLE EIGHT - CORRECTING WORK	26
	ARTICLE NINE - CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTY	26
	ARTICLE TEN - MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTIES	
	ARTICLE ELEVEN - CHANGES IN THE WORK	27
	ARTICLE TWELVE - CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE	28
	ARTICLE THIRTEEN - CHANGE OF THE CONTRACT TIME	
	ARTICLE FOURTEEN - NOTICESARTICLE FIFTEEN - EARLY TERMINATION FOR FAILURE TO REMEDY DEFAULT	30
	ARTICLE FIFTEEN - EARLY TERMINATION FOR FAILURE TO REMEDY DEFAULT ARTICLE SIXTEEN - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	
	ARTICLE SEVENTEEN - ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS	32
	ANTIOLE SEVERITE PROPERTY AND P	
4.0	EXHIBITS	37
	EXHIBIT 1 - BID FORM	37
	EXHIBIT 2 - BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE	
	EXHIBIT 3 - EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS	
	EXHIBIT 4 - DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS	
	EXHIBIT 5 - AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION	48
	EXHIBIT 6 - CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING PENALTIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE	
	WITH NEVADA PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS	49
	EXHIBIT 7 - FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN, FUND OR PROGRAM DISBURSEMENT INFORMATION EXHIBIT 8 - DRAWINGS	
	EXHIBIT 9 - PERFORMANCE BOND	
	EXHIBIT 10 - PAYMENT BOND	
	EXHIBIT 11 - NOTICE OF AWARD	
	EXHIBIT 12 - NOTICE TO PROCEED.	
	EXHIBIT 13- STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS FOR PUBLIC WORKS	
	CONSTRUCTION (ORANGE BOOK), 2016 REVISED EDITION	64
	EXHIBIT 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS	65
	EXHIBIT 15 - SPECIAL OR SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS	
	EXHIBIT 16 - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	
	EXHIBIT 17 - PREVAILING WAGE RATES – ELKO COUNTY OR DAVIS-BACON (ATTACHED) EXHIBIT 18 - PREFERENTIAL BIDDER STATUS AFFIDAVIT	71
	EXHIBIT 18 - PREFERENTIAL BIDDER STATUS AFFIDAVIT	
	EXPIDIT IN CERTIFICATION NOT TO ENGAGE IN BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL	15



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

1.0 INVITATION TO BID

Sealed bid proposals will be accepted until **2:00 P.M., Local Time, Thursday September 21st 2023,** at the office of the Elko City Clerk; 1751 College Avenue; Elko, Nevada 89801, for the following:

EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN

Bid proposals received by the City Clerk after the above-stated time will not be accepted. Bidders mailing their bids assume the risk of late delivery.

The project is located along SR-535 beginning east of I-80 Exit 298 and terminating near Hot Springs Road. The primary scope of work includes a new 400 gpm sewer lift station and parallel sewer force mains with provisions for future buildout to 1,500 gpm. Lift station work includes site grading, installation of precast concrete wet well and dry pit structures with depths of approx. 20-FT; three 15 horsepower sewage pumps and discharge piping; yard piping, valves, and fittings, a flow meter and air valve vault; pig launching stations; electrical and controls; and all associated appurtenances. Force main work includes over 11,500 LF each of 6-inch and 10-inch HDPE piping, air valve assemblies, a waterline relocation, and connections to the City's existing gravity sewer system. The force main piping requires a trenchless crossing under SR-535 and open-cut construction within UPRR right-of-way.

Bidding documents, plans, specifications and contract documents can be obtained free of charge electronically from the City of Elko's website at the following web address: https://www.elkocity.com/government/bidding_opportunities/index.php. All bidders shall be registered with the Elko City Clerk's Office on the official plan holder's list for this project prior to submitting bids for this project. All bidders shall attend the mandatory Pre-Bid Conference for the Project at the time and location stated below to be eligible to submit a construction bid.

Bid proposals must be submitted on the prescribed forms and accompanied by security in the amount, form and subject to the conditions listed in the Instructions to Bidders. Bid proposals will be opened at City Hall immediately after the above deadline, with the bid amounts submitted being read aloud by City Staff to the interested parties present, if any. All interested parties are invited to be in attendance at the bid opening. Contractors will be required to have a current Elko City business license prior to time of contract execution; moreover, a current Nevada State contractor's license of the proper classification to perform the project work is required at the time of the Project bid opening.

All bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope that is legibly marked "EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN". City staff shall thoroughly review all bid proposals for conformance with the contract documents prior to making a written recommendation for award to the Elko City Council.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

The award will be made to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder to the extent and in the manner required by law, unless all bids are rejected. The lowest responsive and responsible bidder shall be determined on the basis of price, conformance to plans and/or specifications, the bidder's qualifications, conformance to applicable sections of NRS Chapter 338, and the best interest of the public.

The <u>mandatory</u> Pre-Bid Conference will be held at Elko City Water & Sewer Shop (1550 STP Rd., Elko, Nevada), on Wednesday September 6th at 2 P.M., Local Time.

The City Council may formally award the contract to the successful bidder at its regularly scheduled meeting at City Hall on **Tuesday October 10th**, after **4 P.M**, **Local Time**. The City Council may, in its sole discretion, reject all bids.

LABOR COMMISSIONER: The Nevada Labor Commissioner's identifying project number is **PWP-EL-2023-474** for this project. NRS 338.013(1) requires the Labor Commissioner's identifying number to be included in any bid or other document submitted in response to the advertisement or other type of solicitation.

The City of Elko reserves the right to accept or reject any and/or all items specified in the bid proposal and further reserves the right to waive any minor technicalities in the bidding documents.

Dated this day of	20
	City of Elko Elko City Council
	BY:

Publish: Elko Daily Free Press -



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Bids are requested for a general construction contract, or work described in general, as follows:

- The City of Elko (City) will receive sealed bids from Bidders until 2 P.M; Local Time, on Thursday, September 21st, 2023. Bids received after this time will not be opened or accepted and will be returned unopened.
- The site visit and mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be held at the Elko City Water & Sewer Department (1550 STP Rd., Elko, Nevada), on Wednesday, September 6th, 2023, at 2 P.M. Local Time. The City or an authorized representative will transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such Addenda as the City or its authorized representative in his discretion considers necessary in response to questions arising at the Pre-bid Conference. Oral statements by City representatives may not be relied upon and will not be binding upon the City. Minutes of the Pre-bid Conference issued by the City or authorized representative, if any, and Addenda issued as a result of the Pre-bid Conference, if any, shall constitute the sole and exclusive record and statement of the results of the Pre-bid Conference.
- 3) The apparent Low Bid will be based solely on the total amount of all bid items and any additive or deductive alternates selected for award by the City. All Bidders are required to submit Bids on all bid items, including all additive and deductive alternates. Additive and deductive alternates will be awarded at the sole discretion of the City. If Alternate Bids are requested on this Project, the following applies: The priority of Alternate Bids will be announced by the City prior to the opening of bids. The City reserves the right to reject all Base Bids and all Alternate Bids. If the City elects not to reject all Bids, it will, prior to the award, first determine which one or more Alternates to accept; then the City will evaluate the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder based upon the Base Bid combined with any Alternates selected. If any Alternates are selected, the fact that a Bidder may have a lower individual Base or Alternate Bid than the individual Bids of the apparent lowest responsive and responsible Bidder is irrelevant, since the successful Bidder will be chosen on the basis of the sum of the Base Bid and the Alternates selected, together with the other relevant factors pursuant to NRS Chapter 338.
- 4) Bidders must submit bids on the Bid Form supplied by the City, fully completed with all blanks filled in, and signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder. Bids not submitted on the required form, and/or not fully completed and/or not signed by an authorized representative of the Bidder, shall be deemed nonresponsive and shall not be considered, subject to the right of the City to waive minor technical defects that do not give the Bidder an advantage over other Bidders, at its sole discretion.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- The Nevada Labor Commissioner's identifying number for this project is PWP-EL-2023-474. NRS 338.013(1) requires that the project identifying number must be included in any bid or other document submitted in response to the advertisement or other type of solicitation.
- All Bidders must submit a Bid Bond in the form of a cashier's check, a certified check, or a corporate surety bond of not less than ten percent (10.0 %) of the amount of the bid, including additive and/or deductive alternates, payable to "The City of Elko," with their Bids. The Bid Bond will be forfeited to the City should the bidder to whom the contract is awarded fail to enter into the Contract in accordance with its Bid and the Contract Documents, and/or fail to furnish any other required bonds or certificates of insurance. The Bid Bond is a penalty, as opposed to liquidated damages, and the Bidder will be liable for all damages in excess of the Bid Bond. The Bid Bond will be returned upon signing of the Contract. The Bidder must use the form of Bid Bond required by the City. A Bid submitted without a Bid Bond that complies with all applicable City requirements will be deemed nonresponsive and not considered.

7) NRS 338.141 provides:

- Except as otherwise provided in subsection (2) next below, each bid submitted must include:
 - (a) If the City provides a list of the labor or portions of the public work which are estimated by the City to exceed 3 percent of the estimated cost of the public work, the name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide such labor or portion of the work on the public work which is estimated to exceed 3 percent of the estimated cost of the public work; or
 - (b) If the City does not provide a list of the labor or portions of the public work which are estimated by the City to exceed 3 percent of the estimated cost of the public work, the name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding 5 percent of the prime contractor's total bid. If the bid is submitted pursuant to this paragraph, within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the bids, the contractors who submitted the three lowest bids must submit a list containing:
 - (1) The name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding \$250,000.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- (2) If any one of the contractors who submitted one of the three lowest bids will employ a first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will not be paid an amount exceeding \$250,000, the name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid or \$50,000, whichever is greater.
- (3) For each first tier subcontractor whose name is listed pursuant to subparagraph (7)(1)(b)(1) or (7)(1)(b)(2) above, the number of the license issued to the first tier subcontractor pursuant to chapter 624 of NRS.

Forms for the Subcontractors List are provided for Bidder's use, to include a 5% List and a 1% List.

- (2) The lists required by subsection 1 must include a description of the labor or portion of the work which each first tier subcontractor named in the list will provide to the prime contractor.
- (3) A prime contractor shall include its name on a list required by paragraph (a) of subsection 1 if it will perform any of the work required to be listed pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1.
- (4) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if a contractor:
 - (a) Fails to submit a required Subcontractors List within the required time; or
 - (b) Submits a Subcontractors List that includes the name of a subcontractor who, at the time of the submission of the list, is on disqualified status with the State Public Works Board pursuant to NRS 338.1376, the contractor's bid shall be deemed not responsive. A contractor's bid shall not be deemed not responsive on the grounds that the contractor submitted a list that includes the name of a subcontractor who, at the time of the submission of the list, is on disqualified status with the State Public Works Board pursuant to NRS 338.1376 if the contractor, before the award of the contract, provides an acceptable replacement subcontractor in the manner set forth in subsection 1 of NRS 338.13895.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- (5) A contractor whose bid is accepted shall not substitute a subcontractor for any subcontractor who is named in the bid, unless:
 - (a) The City or its authorized representative objects to the subcontractor, requests in writing a change in the subcontractor and pays any increase in costs resulting from the change.
 - (b) The substitution is approved by the City or its authorized representative. The substitution must be approved if the City or its authorized representative determines that:
 - (1) The named subcontractor, after having a reasonable opportunity, fails or refuses to execute a written contract with the contractor which was offered to the named subcontractor with the same general terms that all other subcontractors on the project were offered;
 - (2) The named subcontractor files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent;
 - (3) The named subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his subcontract within a reasonable time or is unable to furnish a performance bond and payment bond pursuant to NRS 339.025; or
 - (4) The named subcontractor is not properly licensed to provide that labor or portion of the work.
 - (c) The City or its authorized representative, in awarding the contract pursuant to NRS 338.1375 to 338.139, inclusive:
 - (1) Applies such criteria set forth in NRS 338.1377 as are appropriate for subcontractors and determines that the subcontractor does not meet that criteria; and
 - (2) Requests in writing a substitution of the subcontractor.
- (6) If a contractor indicates pursuant to subsection 1 that it will perform a portion of work on the public work and thereafter requests to substitute a subcontractor to perform such work, the contractor shall provide to the City a written explanation in the form required by the City which contains the reasons that:
 - (a) A subcontractor was not originally contemplated to be used on that portion of the public work; and



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- (b) The substitution is in the best interest of the City.
- (7) As used in this section, "general terms" means the terms and conditions of a contract that set the basic requirements for a public work and apply without regard to the particular trade or specialty of a subcontractor, but does not include any provision that controls or relates to the specific portion of the public work that will be completed by a subcontractor, including, without limitation, the materials to be used by the subcontractor or other details of the work to be performed by the subcontractor.
- All Bids must include a printout from the Nevada State Contractor's Board internet website (http://www.nscb.nv.gov), dated no more than 90 calendar days prior to the date for receipt of Bids, showing that the Bidder has a Nevada Contractor's license in good standing, and that the license is of the type and the monetary limit is sufficiently high to permit the Bidder to perform the work as a general contractor. (Must Accompany Bid)
- 9) A Bid by a corporation, limited liability company, or limited partnership, must include either: (A) for a foreign entity, a Certificate issued by the Nevada Secretary of State within 90 calendar days prior to the date for receipt of Bids, certifying that the Bidder is qualified to do business in the State of Nevada (i.e., a Good Standing Certificate); or (B) for both foreign and domestic entities, a printout from a Business Entity Search on the Nevada Secretary of State Website within 30 calendar days prior to the date for receipt of Bids showing that the Bidder is an active entity registered in that office, together with any other information about the entity contained on the web page. (Must Accompany Bid)
- 10) Bidders must supply all information required by the Bid documents, and specifications. Bids must be full and complete. The City Council reserves the right in its sole discretion to reject any Bid as nonresponsive as a result of any error or omission in the Bid.
- 11) Bids must be clearly written without erasure or deletions. The City Council reserves the right to reject any Bid containing erasures or deletions.
- 12) Bidders may not modify the Bid Form or qualify their Bids.
- 13) Submission of a Bid signifies careful examination of the Contract Documents and complete understanding of the nature, extent and location of Work to be performed. The Bidder must complete the tasks listed in subsections "a" through "e" below, as a condition to bidding, and submission of a Bid shall constitute the Bidder's express representation to the City that the Bidder has fully completed the following:



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- The Bidder has visited and investigated the site where the Work will be a) performed prior to bidding and is satisfied with all conditions affecting the Work, including but not restricted to those bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, availability of labor, water, electrical power, roads and uncertainties of weather, or similar physical conditions at the Project site, and the character of equipment and facilities needed prior to and during prosecution of the Work. The Bidder is satisfied as to the character, quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is reasonably ascertainable from inspection of the Project site, including all exploratory work done by the City, as well as from information presented by the Contract Documents, or any other information made available to the Bidder prior to receipt of bids. Any failure by the Bidder to become acquainted with the available information shall not relieve the Bidder from the responsibility for estimating properly the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the Work.
- b) The Bidder shall be entitled to rely upon all information furnished to the Bidder in writing by the City with respect to the Project site and to make all inferences from it that would reasonably be made by a contractor having knowledge and experience with similar work; however, the Bidder shall not be entitled to infer from City-supplied information any fact or condition which would not be inferred by a bidder having knowledge and experience with similar work and, if the City-supplied information is inadequate or insufficient in any respect, the Bidder shall be required to obtain independently such other information as a knowledgeable and experienced contractor would prudently obtain in order to evaluate any such condition.
- c) The Bidder specifically acknowledges familiarity with all Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations which may in any manner affect those engaged or employed in the Work, or the materials or equipment in or about the Work, or in any way affect the conduct of the Work.
- d) Bidder has correlated its knowledge and the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and
- e) Bidder has given City or authorized representative prompt written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or discrepancies that it has discovered in or among the Contract Documents; provided, the City reserves the sole and exclusive right, in its discretion, to revise the Contract Documents to the extent permitted by law.
- 14) Bidders may examine any available "as-built" drawings of previous work by giving City or authorized representative upon reasonable request, so long as the disclosure



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

of the as-built drawings does not violate the intellectual property rights of a third party. The City will not be responsible for accuracy of "as-built" drawings.

- All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed to the City or its authorized representative. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the City or its authorized representative in response to such questions will be issued by Addendum mailed or delivered to all persons who were previously supplied the Bidding Documents. Questions received less than seven (7) business days prior to the date for opening Bids may not be answered. Only questions answered by a formal written Addendum will be binding upon the City. Questions answered in a written format other than an Addendum, or verbal or other unwritten interpretations or clarifications will not be binding upon the City.
- 16) Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents at the discretion of the City.
- 17) Addenda must be acknowledged by the Bidder in the Bid Form by number.

 Addenda are Contract Documents. A complete list of Addenda may be obtained from the City or its authorized representative.
- 18) For contracts of \$100,000.00 or more, subject to certain limited exceptions, NRS 338.020 requires the contractor and all subcontractors to pay at least the prevailing wage set by the Nevada Labor Commissioner in effect at the time of contract award, even if the prevailing wage rates are changed between the time of preparation of the specifications and the time of contract award. Copies of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute the Contract, as determined by the Nevada Labor Commissioner and in effect at the time of the printing of the specifications, are included in the specifications. All Bidders are responsible for confirming whether any applicable prevailing wage rates are changed between the time of preparation of the specifications and the time of contract award. Current "Prevailing Wage Rates for Elko County" are included in the attachment at the end of the Contract Technical Specifications for the Project.
- 19) Pursuant to NRS 338.140(1)(b), the City is prohibited from drafting or causing to be drafted specifications for bids, except in those instances where the product is designated to match others in use on a particular public improvement either completed or in the course of completion, calling for a designated material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name unless the specification lists at least two brands or trade names of comparable quality or utility and is followed by the words "or equal" so that bidders may furnish any equal material, product, thing or service. In the event equals are identified in the specifications, bids must be based on products and systems specified, or listed by name, in the Contract Documents or listed by name in Addenda. In the event the term "or equal" is used in the specifications, the following procedure must be followed for the approval of an equal:



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- a) Any Bidder may request the City or its authorized representative to approve an equal prior to Bid opening, and each Bidder is encouraged to do so as soon as possible if its Bid will include an equal. However, no Bidder is required to make such a request.
- b) If an equal item is approved prior to Bid opening, it must be listed on an Addenda to all prospective Bidders.
- c) Requests for approval of an equal must contain sufficient information to permit the City or its representative to assess its suitability and impact on the Project. Insufficient information regarding the suitability of the equal shall be grounds for disapproval.
- d) Nevada law permits the Contractor to submit data substantiating a request for approval of an equal up to seven (7) business days after the award.
- e) If the request for approval of an "equal" is not given, the Bidder's Bid must be deemed nonresponsive (and the award rescinded if it has been made).
- f) Substitutions may be requested after the Contract has been signed, but only in accordance with requirements specified in the General Conditions and Specifications, and Nevada law.
- 20) Bids will be received at the City Clerk's Office at 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada. Bids will be opened in a conference room at the City offices.
 - a. Envelopes or boxes containing Bids must be sealed, and marked with name and address of the Bidder, and addressed to:

City of Elko 1751 College Avenue Elko, Nevada 89801

- b. Mark envelopes or boxes: BID FOR: EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN PROJECT FOR: City of Elko, Elko, Nevada
- 21) By 4 p.m. of the **twentieth** business day following acceptance of Bids by the City Council, the bidder must deliver to the City proof that Bidder has taken out for the entire period covered by the proposed contract all insurance policies that would be required to perform the Contract. Proof of insurance may, without limitation, include a declaration page(s) and any other documents reasonably necessary to prove that all required insurance coverages are in effect at the time bids are submitted.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Failure to properly and timely submit proof of insurance entitles the City Council to **reject the bid as non-responsive**, not issue a Notice to Proceed, and award the Contract to another Bidder.

- a. Any bid protest must be submitted in writing to the City Attorney, David M. Stanton, at the law offices of Goicoechea, Di Grazia, Coyle & Stanton, Ltd., 530 Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada 89801 within five (5) business days after the date the recommendation to award a contract is issued by the City Council or its authorized representative. The notice of protest must include a written statement setting forth with specificity the reasons the person filing the notice believes the applicable provisions of law were violated. The protest must refer to the specific portions of all documents which form the basis for the protest. The protest must include the name, address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting party. The party filing the protest must concurrently transmit a copy of the initial protest document and any attached documentation to all other Bidders with a direct financial interest which may be adversely affected by the outcome of the protest and/or who appear to have a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.
- b. The City, to include the City Attorney, may investigate the protest.
- c. A person filing a notice of protest may be required by the City at the time the notice of protest is filed, to post a bond with a good and solvent surety authorized to do business in the State of Nevada or submit other security, in a form approved by the City, to the City who shall hold the bond or other security until a determination is made on the protest. A bond posted or other security submitted with a notice of protest must be in an amount equal to the lesser of: (a) Twenty-five percent of the total value of the bid submitted by the person filing the notice of protest; or (b) Two hundred fifty thousand dollars.
- d. A notice of protest filed in accordance with the provisions of this section operates as a stay of action in relation to the awarding of any contract until a determination is made by the City on the protest.
- e. A person who makes an unsuccessful bid may not seek any type of judicial intervention until the City has made a determination on the protest and awarded the contract.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- f. Neither the City, nor any authorized representative of the City, is liable for any costs, expenses, attorney's fees, loss of income or other damages sustained by a person who makes a bid, whether or not the person files a notice of protest pursuant to this section.
- g. If the protest is upheld, the bond posted or other security submitted with the notice of protest must be returned to the person who posted the bond or submitted the security. If the protest is rejected, a claim may be made against the bond or other security by the City in an amount equal to the expenses incurred by the City because of the unsuccessful protest. Any money remaining after the claim has been satisfied must be returned to the person who posted the bond or submitted the security.
- h. Bidders are advised to consult Nevada Revised Statutes 338.142 for requirements applicable to protests of awards of public works contracts.
- Prior to award, the City Council reserves the right to reject any or all bids to the extent permitted by law including, without limitation, the right to reject any or all responsive bids or bids submitted by bidders determined to be not responsible. Bidders are advised that any bid may be rejected if the public interest would be served by such a rejection.
- 23) The City Council also reserves the right to waive technical defects to the extent such defects are minor and the waiver does not provide any bidder with a competitive advantage over any other bidder.
- 24) Unbalanced bids and conditional bids are nonresponsive. For purposes of this paragraph, an "unbalanced bid" is one having nominal prices for some work items and enhanced prices for other work items. A "conditional bid" is one in which one or more specified prices may change after a bid is submitted.
- Discrepancies between the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resolved in favor of the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. Discrepancies between written words and figures, or words and numerals, will be resolved in favor of the words.
- In evaluating bids to determine the best bid (where required), the City Council will consider the qualifications of bidders; whether the bids are responsive (to include whether the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices and other data, as are requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award); whether the bidder is responsible; whether the quality of the services, materials, equipment or labor offered conforms to the approved plans or specifications; and whether the public interest would be served by such a rejection.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

The City may conduct such investigations as the City Council deems necessary to assist in this evaluation.

- As a requisite to bidding on the work, bidders and their subcontractors must be properly licensed at the time of bid opening to perform all work bid under Chapter 624 of the Nevada Revised Statutes and Chapter 624 of the Nevada Administrative Code.
- 28) Unless all bids are rejected and except as otherwise provided under Nevada law, the contract will be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.
- 29) For public works contracts of \$250,000 or more, NRS 338.147 requires the City to award the contract to the contractor who submits the best bid. Bidders are directed to NRS 338.147 for the criteria used to determine the best bid, which includes criteria for determining the lowest bid.
- 30) Bids may not be withdrawn (1) within sixty (60) calendar days following the date of bid opening or (2) after the contract has been awarded.
- 31) Bidders are advised that Senate Bill 207 (2019), known as the "Apprenticeship Utilization Act, provides as follows:
 - a) A contractor or subcontractor engaged in vertical construction who employs a worker on a public work pursuant to NRS 338.040 shall use one or more apprentices for at least 10 percent of the total hours of labor worked for each apprenticed craft or type of work to be performed on the public work for which more than three workers are employed.
 - b) A contractor or subcontractor engaged in horizontal construction who employs a worker on a public work pursuant to NRS 338.040 shall use one or more apprentices for at least 3 percent of the total hours of labor worked for each apprenticed craft or type of work to be performed on the public work for which more than three workers are employed.
 - c) On or after January 1, 2021, the Labor Commissioner, in collaboration with the State Apprenticeship Council, may adopt regulations to increase the percentage of total hours of labor required to be performed by an apprentice pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 of Senate Bill 207 by not more than 2 percentage points.
 - d) A contractor or subcontractor engaged on a public work is not required to use an apprentice in a craft or type of work performed in a jurisdiction recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council as not having apprentices in that craft or type of work.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- e) The City may, upon the request of a contractor or subcontractor, submit a request to the Labor Commissioner to modify or waive the percentage of hours of labor provided by one or more apprentices required pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 for good cause. The City must submit such a request, before an advertisement for bids has been placed, the opening of bids or the award of a contract for a public work or after the public body has commenced work on the public work. Such a request must include any supporting documentation, including, without limitation, proof of denial of or failure to approve a request for apprentices pursuant to subparagraph (3) of paragraph (d) of subsection 10 of Senate Bill 207.
- f) The Labor Commissioner shall issue a determination of whether to grant a modification or waiver requested by the City within 15 days after the receipt of such request. The Labor Commissioner may grant such a request if he or she makes a finding that there is good cause to modify or waive the percentage of hours of labor provided by one or more apprentices required pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 of Senate Bill 207.
- g) The City, a contractor or a subcontractor may request a hearing on the determination of the Labor Commissioner within 10 days after receipt of the determination of the Labor Commissioner. The hearing must be conducted in accordance with regulations adopted by the Labor Commissioner. If the Labor Commissioner does not receive a request for a hearing pursuant to subsection 8 of Senate Bill 207, the determination of the Labor Commissioner is a final decision for the purposes of judicial review pursuant to chapter 233B of NRS.
- h) A contractor or subcontractor engaged on a public work shall enter into an apprenticeship agreement for all apprentices required to be used in the construction of a public work. If the Labor Commissioner granted a modification or waiver pursuant to subsection 7 of Senate Bill 207 because the Labor Commissioner finds that a request for apprentices was denied or the request was not approved within 5 business days as described in subparagraph (3) of paragraph (d) of subsection 10 of Senate Bill 207 and apprentices are later provided, then the contractor or subcontractor shall enter into an apprenticeship agreement for all apprentices later provided.
- i) As used in Senate Bill 207:
 - (1) "Apprentice" means a person enrolled in an apprenticeship program recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council.
 - (2) "Apprenticed craft or type of work" means a craft or type of work for which there is an existing apprenticeship program recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council.
 - (3) "Apprenticeship program" means an apprenticeship program recognized



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

by the State Apprenticeship Council.

- (4) "Good cause" means:
 - (A) There are no apprentices available from an apprenticeship program within the jurisdiction where the public work is to be completed as recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council;
 - (B) The contractor or subcontractor is required to perform uniquely complex or hazardous tasks on the public work that require the skill and expertise of a greater percentage of journeymen; or
 - (C) The contractor or subcontractor has requested apprentices from an apprenticeship program and the request has been denied or the request has not been approved within 5 business days.

The term "good cause" does not include the refusal of a contractor or subcontractor to enter into an apprenticeship agreement pursuant to subsection 9 of Senate Bill 207.

- (5) "Journeyman" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 624.260.
- (6) "State Apprenticeship Council" means the State Apprenticeship Council created by NRS 610.030.

END OF DOCUMENT



PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

(NEVADA REVISED STATUTES CHAPTER 338)

This Contract is made and entered into on this day of , 20 (hereinafter the "Effective Date") between the City of
Elko, Nevada, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nevada (hereinafter the "Owner") and:
which party is a
(name and describe individual and/or type of business entity, including state of formation or incorporation, where applicable) hereinafter "Contractor."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Owner intends to award a contract for the performance of a public works project known as the **EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN** (hereinafter the "Project");

WHEREAS, the Project is generally described as follows: A new sewer lift station and parallel sewer force mains.

WHEREAS, Contractor was selected to perform the Project in accordance with Chapter 338 of the Nevada Revised Statutes and to complete the work in accordance with the Contract Documents (defined below) (hereinafter the "Work");

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above recitals and for good and valuable consideration as further described herein, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE ONE - DESCRIPTION OF WORK

Contractor shall perform all Work needed to complete the Project in accordance with this Contract and the documents attached hereto and incorporated herein as **Exhibits 1** through **19**, as follows:



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Exhibit 1	Bid Form
Exhibit 2	Bid Proposal Guarantee (including Bid Bond, if applicable)
Exhibit 3	Bidder Experience Qualifications
Exhibit 4	Designation of Subcontractors with 1% & 5% Subcontractor Lists
Exhibit 5	Affidavit of Non-Collusion
Exhibit 6	Certification of Bidder Regarding Penalties for Non-Compliance
	with Nevada Prevailing Wage Requirements
Exhibit 7	Fringe Benefit Plan, Fund or Program Disbursement Information
Exhibit 8	Drawings (including plans, maps, plats and blueprints)
Exhibit 9	Performance Bond
Exhibit 10	Payment Bond
Exhibit 11	Notice of Award
Exhibit 12	Notice to Proceed
Exhibit 13	Standard Specifications and Details for Public Works Construction
	(Orange Book) 2016 Revised Edition (see the following URL:
	http://rtcwashoe.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/2016-Version-
	Revision-No9.pdf) (hard copy not attached to Contract)
Exhibit 14	General Provisions (depending upon applicable requirements)
Exhibit 15	Special or Supplemental Provisions
Exhibit 16	Technical Specifications
Exhibit 17	Prevailing Wage Rates - Elko County or Davis-Bacon Wage Rates
Exhibit 18	Preferential Bidders Status Affidavit
Exhibit 19	Certification Not to Engage in Boycott of Israel

This Contract and **Exhibits 1 through 19** are herein referred to collectively as the "Contract Documents." The Work shall include all items identified as Additive Alternates in the Notice of Award. Unless otherwise indicated in the Contract Documents, the Work shall not include design work, which Owner shall procure through a separate contract or contracts with design professionals, nor shall the Work include work performed by Owner or items identified as Deductive Alternates in the Notice of Award.

In the event of an inconsistency between the terms of this Contract and any of the Contract Documents attached hereto as **Exhibits1 through 19**, the terms of this Contract



shall prevail.

ARTICLE TWO

CONTRACT PRICE

Owner agrees to pay Contractor for the Work the total price of:

\$			

(hereinafter the "Contract Price"), which includes all labor, materials, and (where applicable) architectural and engineering plans necessary for the erection and completion of the Work as described in the Plans and Specifications and in accordance with the Contract Documents. Payment of the Contract Price is subject to approved additions or approved deductions in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.

ARTICLE THREE - STARTING AND COMPLETION DATES

Construction under this Contract shall begin no later than the date indicated on the "Notice to Proceed" to be issued by Owner after execution of this Contract. Subject to written extensions of time or delays authorized by Owner or stoppage of Work as permitted in this Contract, the Work shall be substantially completed no later than One Hundred and Eighty (180")<One Hundred



ARTICLE FOUR - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents on which the Contract between Owner and Contractor is based and which contain the Plans and Specifications in accordance with which the Work is to be done are as follows:

- A. This Contract, with any supplementary contracts and conditions attached hereto which are signed by both parties;
- B. **Exhibits 1 through 19**, which have been incorporated by reference herein; and
 - C. Written Work Change Orders properly issued.

The Contract Documents together form the contract for the Work herein described. The parties intend that the Contract Documents include provisions for all labor, materials, equipment, supplies, and other items necessary for the execution and completion of the Work, and all items and conditions of payment. The documents also include all work and procedures not expressly indicated therein necessary for proper execution of this Project.

ARTICLE FIVE - DUTIES AND AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER

The duties and authority of the Owner are as follows:

- A. <u>General Administration of Contract.</u> General administration of the contract to ensure compliance with design plans.
- B. <u>Access to Work Site for Inspections.</u> Owner, or Owner's agents, shall be given free access to the Work at all time during its preparation and progress.

C. Payment and Acceptance of Work.

(1) <u>Application for Progress Payment.</u> As a prerequisite to Contractor's entitlement to a progress payment, Contractor shall first submit to Owner for review an



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Application for Progress Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed to that date, and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not yet incorporated into the Work, but delivered and suitably stored at the site or at another location designated by Contractor, the Application for Progress Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice or other documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all liens (to include lien waivers, if appropriate), charges, security interests and encumbrances, and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance and other arrangements to protect Owner's interests therein, all of which will be satisfactory to Owner.

- (2) <u>Progress Payments.</u> Except as otherwise provided herein, Owner shall pay to Contractor the amount indicated on each Application for Progress Payment within thirty (30) calendar days of the date it is submitted to the Owner. All Progress Payments are subject to the requirements of NRS 338.515 (Time for making payments; amounts paid; amounts withheld as retainage; rate of interest paid on amounts withheld; powers of Labor Commissioner when worker is owed wages), as amended.
- (3) Payment Upon Final Completion. Payment of any outstanding balance shall be paid in accordance with NRS 338.520 upon occupancy, use or recording of notice of completion, less amounts previously paid for the Work or amounts which Owner is required to withhold by order of the Nevada Labor Commissioner pursuant to NRS 338.515. In the event any liens are filed on the Project, those sums shall be withheld from the final retention payment, until such liens are resolved and removed. Upon final acceptance of the completed Work, Owner may publish a Notice of Completion. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that "substantial completion" is not equivalent to final completion.
- D. <u>Work Performed by Owner.</u> This Contract specifically allows Work to be performed by Owner. Contractor assumes no responsibility for work performed by Owner and Owner shall release and hold harmless Contractor for any deficiencies in such work, and shall indemnify and defend Contractor from and against any and all claims arising from or in any manner related to Work performed by Owner. Owner shall, upon Contractor's request, identify in writing all work performed by Owner which is included



within the scope of the Work and the Contract Price shall thereafter be reduced by the amount Contractor would have otherwise charged for the work pursuant to the Contract.

ARTICLE SIX - RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

Contractor's duties and rights in connection with the project herein are as follows:

- A. <u>Responsibility for and Supervision of Construction.</u> Contractor shall be solely responsible for all construction under this Contract, including the techniques, sequences, procedures, and means, and for coordination of all Work. Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work to the best of its ability, and give the Work all attention necessary for such proper supervision and direction.
- B. <u>Furnishing of Labor, Materials.</u> Contractor shall provide and pay, if necessary, for all labor, materials, and equipment, including tools, construction equipment, and machinery, utilities, transportation, and all other facilities and services necessary for the proper completion of Work on the project in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. <u>Compliance with Construction Laws and Regulations.</u> The Contractor and any subcontractor or other person who provides labor, equipment, materials, supplies or services for the Work shall comply with the requirements of all applicable state and local laws, including, without limitation, any applicable licensing and registration requirements and requirements for the payment of sales and use taxes on equipment, materials and supplies provided for the Work. If any of the Contract Documents are at variance therewith, Contractor shall notify Owner promptly on discovery of such variance.
- D. <u>Responsibility for Negligence of Employees and Subcontractors.</u>
 Contractor assumes full responsibility for acts, negligence, or omissions of all its employees on this project, for those of its subcontractors and their employees, and for those of all other persons doing Work under a contract with Contractor.
- E. <u>Materials Warranty.</u> In addition to any other warranties set forth herein, Contractor represents and warrants to Owner that the materials used in the Work, and



made a part of the structure on the Property or placed permanently in connection therewith, will be new unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, of good quality, free of defects, and in conformity with the Contract Documents. It is understood between the parties hereto that materials not so in conformity are defective.

- F. <u>Clean-up.</u> Contractor agrees to remove all such waste material and rubbish on termination of the project, together with all its tools, equipment, machinery and surplus materials. Contractor agrees, on terminating its Work at the site, to conduct general clean-up operations.
- G. Indemnity and Hold Harmless Contract. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and its agents, and employees, from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees in case it shall be necessary to file an action, arising out of performance of the Work herein, which is (1) for bodily injury, illness, or death, or for property damages including loss of use, and (2) caused in whole or in part by Contractor's intentional or negligent act or omission. Owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its agents, and employees, from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees in case it shall be necessary to file an action, arising out of performance of the work herein (to include work performed by Owner), which is (1) for bodily injury, illness, or death, or for property damages including loss of use, and (2) caused in whole or in part by Owner's intentional or negligent act or omission.
- H. <u>Safety Precautions and Programs.</u> Contractor has the duty of providing for and overseeing all safety orders, precautions, and programs necessary for the reasonable safety of the Work. In this connection, Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of all Work employees and other persons whom the Work might affect, all labor and materials incorporated in the project, and all property and improvements on the construction site and adjacent thereto, complying with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders.
- I. <u>Subcontractors</u>. Contractor acknowledges that it has provided Owner with a list or lists of all subcontractors which Contractor shall use for the Work to be performed herein in compliance with NRS 338.141(1)(b).



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

- J. <u>Payment of Materialmen.</u> Contractor shall promptly pay all materialmen, subcontractors and other persons furnishing labor, material, goods or services to the Work, and shall indemnify and hold Owner harmless from any liens filed by such persons or entities including reasonable attorney fees and court costs incurred in connection herewith.
- K. <u>Sales Taxes.</u> Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of all sales, use, gross receipts or other taxes related to Contractor's Work under this Contract.
- L. <u>Worker's Compensation.</u> Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, be responsible for providing or assuring that worker's compensation coverage is provided to or by, all persons or entities providing labor in connection with the Work as required under the laws of the State of Nevada.
- M. <u>Employee Benefits.</u> Contractor shall be responsible at its sole cost and expense for payment of any or all employee benefits taxes, including but not limited to unemployment, social security, retirement, health, welfare or any other fringe benefit in connection with any Work performed by Contractor.
- N. <u>Fees, licenses and Permits.</u> Except as otherwise provided in this Subsection N, Contractor shall be responsible for fees (to include inspection fees), licenses and permits required by a governmental entity, to include, without limitation, the City of Elko. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Owner shall pay for or waive the following fees and/or permits to the extent required for the performance of the Work:

- O. <u>No Assignment of Payments.</u> Contractor shall not assign the right to receive any payments due under this Contract except with the prior written consent of the Owner.
- P. <u>Capacity of Contractor</u>. Contractor has the financial capacity to pay all debts incurred in the performance of the Work, and possesses or shall prior to



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

performance acquire all knowledge, equipment, materials, supplies and other means necessary to finally complete the Work within the Contract Time, to include the retention of appropriate subcontractors.

- Q. <u>Financial Capacity of Subcontractors</u>. Contractor will ensure that all subcontractors it retains will have the financial capacity to pay all debts incurred in the performance of the portion of the Work for which they are subcontracted, and will possess or shall prior to performance acquire all knowledge, equipment, materials, supplies and other means necessary to finally complete the portion of the Work for which they are subcontracted within the Contract Time.
- R. <u>Licensing</u>. Contractor is authorized to do business in the State of Nevada, is licensed for the type of work to be performed herein and holds Nevada Contractor's License Number(s):
- S. <u>Site Inspection and Research</u>. Contractor has visited the Property and has performed sufficient research necessary to familiarize itself with the Property and any special or local conditions, to include climate, topography and geographic location that have the potential to materially impact its ability to perform the Work within the Contract Time. Contractor has also reviewed all reasonably available reports (including geotechnical reports), test results, drilling logs and studies pertaining to subsurface conditions at the Property. Based upon the foregoing, Contractor has determined that it can perform the Work within the Contract Time.

<u>ARTICLE SEVEN - INSURANCE</u>

A. <u>Contractor's Liability Insurance.</u> Contractor agrees to keep in force at his own expense during the entire period of construction of the project such liability insurance



as will protect it from claims, under worker's compensation and other employee benefit laws, for bodily injury and death, and for property damage, that may arise out of work under this Contract, whether directly or indirectly by Contractor, or directly or indirectly by a subcontractor. The minimum liability limit for bodily injury on such insurance shall not be less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00). Such insurance shall include contractual liability insurance applicable to Contractor's obligations under this contract. Unless previously provided, proof of such insurance shall be filed by Contractor with Owner within five (5) calendar days after execution of this contract.

- B. <u>Owner's Liability Insurance.</u> Owner shall maintain premises liability in the amount of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00).
- C. <u>Property Damage Insurance.</u> Contractor shall be solely responsible for any losses to his own equipment through fire, vandalism or other perils.
- D. <u>Fire and Perils Waiver.</u> Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by insurance provided herein.

ARTICLE EIGHT - CORRECTING WORK

When it appears to Contractor during the course of construction that any Work does not conform to the provision of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall make necessary corrections so that such Work will so conform, and in addition will correct any defects caused by faulty materials, equipment, or workmanship in Work supervised by Contractor or by a subcontractor.

ARTICLE NINE - CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTY

Contractor further represents and warrants that the Work will be performed in a good and workmanlike manner, in conformance with the Contract Documents and free from any and all defects. For a period of one (1) year after final acceptance by the Owner or within such longer period as may be prescribed by law, Contractor shall, at its own expense, promptly repair, replace, rebuild or restore any portion of the Work that is determined by the Owner to be defective or not in conformance with the Contract



Documents.

ARTICLE TEN - MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTIES

To the extent available to Contractor, Contractor shall deliver to Owner guarantees or warranties provided by the manufacturers of specific products utilized in the performance of the Work and installed or constructed on the Property.

ARTICLE ELEVEN - CHANGES IN THE WORK

- A. Owner's Change Orders. Without invalidating the Contract, Owner may at any time, from time-to-time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work that do not result in a material change to the scope of Work. These will only be authorized by written Change Orders. Change Orders are to be negotiated solely with Contractor or its authorized representative and not with subcontractors or materialmen. Upon receipt of a written Change Order, Contractor will proceed with the Work involved. All such Work shall be executed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. If any Change Order causes an increase or decrease in the Contract Price or an extension or shortening of the Contract Time, an equitable adjustment will be made as provided in ARTICLE TWELVE or ARTICLE THIRTEEN.
- B. Owner's Field Orders. Owner may authorize minor changes or alterations in the Work not involving extra cost and not inconsistent with the overall intent of the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a written Field Order. If Contractor believes that any minor changes or alterations by Owner entitle it to an increase in the Contract Price, Contractor may suspend Work until the Owner and Contractor agree upon the increased price.
- C. <u>Unauthorized Additional Work.</u> Additional Work performed by Contractor without authorization of a Change Order will not entitle Contractor to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Time.
- D. <u>Execution of Change Orders.</u> Owner will, upon approval, execute appropriate Change Orders prepared by Contractor covering changes in the Work to be performed and any other claim of Contractor for a change in the Contract Time or the



Contract Price that is reasonable.

- E. <u>Writing Required.</u> All Change Orders of whatever type or nature must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of the Owner. Accordingly, wherever the context of this Contract indicates that Owner approval is required, such approval must be as described in this ARTICLE ELEVEN, E, herein.
- F. <u>Suspension of Work.</u> Notwithstanding any other provision herein, Contractor may not suspend Work based on a written Change Order affecting price or adding time unless the change requested materially affects Contractor's ability to perform the remainder of the Work within the price or time frames of the original Contract.
- G. <u>No Material Changes to Scope.</u> In no event shall a Change Order cause a material change to the scope of the Work.

ARTICLE TWELVE - CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE

- A. <u>Total Compensation</u>. The Contract Price constitutes the total compensation payable to Contractor for performing the Work. All duties, responsibilities, and obligations assigned to or undertaken by Contractor shall be at its expense without change in the Contract Price.
- B. <u>Necessity of Change Order.</u> The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order approved by the Owner and the Contractor. Any claim for an increase in the Contract Price shall be in writing and delivered to Owner. All claims for adjustments in the Contract Price resulting from any such claim shall be incorporated in a written Change Order. Subject to the limitations in ARTICLE ELEVEN, F, the Contractor may suspend Work until the Owner and Contractor agree upon the Change Order changing the Contract Price.
- C. <u>Determination of Value of Change Order Work.</u> The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price shall be determined by multiplying the applicable quantity by the unit price indicated in the bid form, except as otherwise agreed between Owner and Contractor in a written



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Change Order. In such case, Contractor will submit an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

D. Amount of Credit to Owner. The amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any such change that results in a net decrease in costs, will be determined by multiplying the applicable quantity by the unit price indicated in the bid form, except as otherwise agreed between Owner and Contractor in a written Change Order. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the combined overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of the net increase, if any.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN - CHANGE OF THE CONTRACT TIME

- A. <u>Necessity of Change Order.</u> The Contract Time may only be changed by a Change Order. Any claim for an extension in the Contract Time shall be in writing delivered to Owner by Contractor within five (5) calendar days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim. All claims for adjustment in the Contract Time shall be agreed upon in writing by the Owner and Contractor. Any change in the Contract Time resulting from any such claim shall be incorporated in a Change Order. Subject to the limitations of ARTICLE ELEVEN, F, the Contractor may suspend Work until the Owner and Contractor agree upon the change in Contract Time.
- B. <u>Delays Beyond Contractor's Control.</u> The Contract Time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost due to delays beyond the control of Contractor if Contractor makes a claim for such extension(s) as provided in Section A of this ARTICLE THIRTEEN. Such delays shall include, but not be restricted to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by Owner, fires, flood, labor disputes, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, unanticipated site conditions or Acts of God, suspension of Work by Contractor resulting from Owner and Contractor failing to agree on Change Orders and work stoppage as set forth in Section C, below. Notwithstanding all provisions herein to the contrary, delays beyond sixty (60) calendar days, for any reason, permit the Owner to terminate this Contract on ten (10) calendar days' prior written notice. In such instance, Owner shall be liable to Contractor for all Work performed to the date of termination.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

ARTICLE FOURTEEN - NOTICES

Any and all notices, demands, requests, and other communications required or permitted to be served on or given to either party by the other shall be delivered personally or by United States Mail, first class postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, by facsimile or by e-mail, read receipt, as follows:

Contractor:	Name:	
	Attention:	
	Address:	
	Facsimile:	
	E-Mail:	
Owner:	Name:	City of Elko
	Attention:	Kelly Wooldridge City Clerk
	Address:	1751 College Avenue,
		Elko, Nevada 89801
	Facsimile:	775-777-7126
	E-Mail:	cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov

Such addresses may be changed by the party entitled to receive notice any time upon this notice to the other party of designation of a new address. If delivered personally, such notice shall be effective upon delivery. If mailed, such notice shall be effective upon the date of receipt indicated on the return receipt.

ARTICLE FIFTEEN - EARLY TERMINATION FOR FAILURE TO REMEDY DEFAULT

A. <u>Failure to Remedy Default; Early Termination</u>. If Contractor defaults in performance of any material provision herein and Contractor fails to commence reasonable efforts to remedy such default after thirty (30) calendar days' written notice from the Owner specifying the default, Owner may then terminate this Contract before the



completion date hereof without prejudice to any other remedy Owner may have.

B. <u>Cost to Complete Project to be Reimbursed</u>. If Owner terminates the Contract due to a breach in the terms of the Contract by Contractor, and is thereby required to retain a different contractor to complete the Project, any related increase in the total cost of the Project will be at Owner's sole discretion, will be withheld from any retention held by Owner, will be obtained from the proceeds of any applicable bond(s) posted by the Contractor and/or will be reimbursed by the Contractor to the Owner immediately upon demand.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

- Liquidated Damages for Failure to Timely Achieve Substantial Completion. Α. It is acknowledged that the Contractor's failure to achieve substantial completion of the Work within the Contract Time provided by the Contract Documents will cause the Owner to incur substantial economic damages and losses of types and in amounts which are impossible to compute and ascertain with certainty as a basis for recovery by the Owner of actual damages, and that liquidated damages represent a fair, reasonable and appropriate estimate thereof. Accordingly, in lieu of actual damages for such delay, the Contractor agrees that liquidated damages may be assessed and recovered by the Owner as against Contractor and its Surety, in the event of delayed completion and without the Owner being required to present any evidence of the amount or character of actual damages sustained by reason thereof; therefore Contractor shall be liable to the Owner for payment of liquidated damages in the amount of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) for each calendar day that Substantial Completion is delayed beyond the Contract Time as adjusted for time extensions provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- B. <u>Interest</u>. Interest shall accrue on all unpaid liquidated damages at a rate equal to the prime rate at the largest bank in Nevada as ascertained by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions on January 1 or July 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding the date of the liquidated damages accrue, plus 2 percent. The rate shall be adjusted accordingly on each January 1 and July 1 thereafter until the liquidated damages are paid in full.



- C. Owner's Right of Offset. In the event there are sums due to Contractor from Owner subsequent to the date upon which liquidated damages begin to accrue, Owner may thereafter offset and deduct from such sums the amount of any liquidated damages then accrued and Contractor shall not thereafter be entitled to recover the difference from Owner.
- D. Remedy not Exclusive. Liquidated damages are intended to represent estimated actual damages and are not intended as a penalty. Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to Owner without limiting Owner's right to terminate this Contract for default as provided elsewhere herein. Liquidated damages only represent damages for administrative costs, overhead and loss of public use caused by Contractor's delay. The imposition or recovery of liquidated damages by Owner shall in no manner affect Owner's ability to recover any other damages caused by Contractor's default to include, without limitation, the cost of completion.

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN - ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

- A. <u>Integration.</u> This Contract and the exhibits hereto constitute the entire contract between the parties with respect to the Work and supersede all prior agreements, offers and negotiations (to include, without limitation, the Invitation to Bid and Instructions to Bidders, unless otherwise specifically stated herein) and may not be amended except by a contract in writing signed by the parties.
- B. <u>Binding on Assigns and Successors</u>. This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs and assigns and successors.
- C. Choice of Law; Jurisdiction and Venue. This Contract and the provisions hereof shall be construed, given effect and governed by the laws of the State of Nevada, and in the event of a breach of this contract by any of the parties, the other party shall have all remedies at law or equity provided by the laws of the State of Nevada. Irrespective of any statutory provision to the contrary, jurisdiction and venue for any action shall be in the Fourth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Elko. The parties understand that statutory provisions may permit venue in locations



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

other than the County of Elko; however, the parties hereby voluntarily waive any such statutory provisions.

- D. <u>Captions and Headings</u>. The captions and headings of the sections hereof are for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions of the Contract.
- E. <u>Attorney Fees and Costs to Prevailing Party</u>. Should either party be required to seek legal action to enforce or interpret the terms and conditions of this contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs.
- F. <u>Ambiguities</u>. Each party has reviewed this Contract with counsel; accordingly, the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of the Contract.
- G. <u>Unenforceability of Provisions</u>. In the event that one or more of the provisions, or portions thereof, of the Contract is determined to be illegal and unenforceable, the remainder of the Contract shall not be affected thereby and each remaining provision or portion thereof shall continue to be valid and effective and shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.
- H. <u>Further Documents</u>. Contractor and Owner agree to execute all documents necessary to complete the Contract described herein.
- I. <u>Waiver</u>. Any waiver of one or more defaults or breach of any term of this Contract shall not be construed to constitute a waiver of future defaults or breaches of the terms of this Contract.
- J. <u>Signatures</u>. The parties agree that this Contract may be executed by electronic or facsimile signatures, which shall have the same effect as original signatures of the parties. Also, this Contract may be executed in counterparts, all of which shall be deemed originals and with the same effect as if all parties had signed the original. The signatories to this Contract are authorized to execute this instrument on behalf of the respective parties.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

K. Mediation. The parties recognize that differences sometimes arise in the course of a relationship and wish to avoid litigation. Accordingly, all claims, disputes and other matters in question between Contractor and Owner arising out of or relating to this Contract or the breach thereof, the Project, or the Work ("disputes") shall first be submitted to negotiation. Disputes claimed by either party must be made by written notice promptly upon the recognition of the event giving rise to such claim. If after thirty (30) calendar days from the date the dispute arose negotiations prove unsuccessful in whole or in part, any remaining disputes shall be submitted to a mediator and the mediation shall be performed expeditiously by a mediator located in Elko County, Nevada. In the event a mediator cannot be located in Elko County, Nevada, the parties agree to split the cost for a mediator to travel to Elko County, Nevada to mediate such claims.

Pending final resolution of any dispute, including mediation in accordance with this Section, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work to the extent it is unrelated to the dispute and the subject matter of the dispute does not inhibit the progress of the Work generally and Owner shall continue to make payments to Contractor in accordance with this Agreement to the extent unrelated to the dispute. To the extent necessary in light of the circumstances, the Contract Time shall be extended by the period of time necessary to resolve any dispute. Such performance by Contractor and payment by Owner shall not operate to waive or estop either party from pursuing the claim which gave rise to the dispute.

If the mediation does not occur within ninety (90) calendar days of such dispute, or if the mediation is conducted and all disputes are not therein resolved, then either party may file an action in the Fourth Judicial District Court, Elko, County, Nevada. All applicable statutes of limitations and the like shall be tolled while the requirements of this provision are pending, but only as to the disputes hereby submitted for negotiation or mediation.

L. <u>Approval by City Council and Execution by City Official (s)</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, this Contract shall not be binding on the Owner until it has been approved by the City Council and executed by its authorized official(s).





(775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature Page Immediately Follows]





IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the day and year first hereinabove written.

OWNER:	
CITY OF ELKO	
Ву:	
MAYOR	
CONTRACTOR (Company Name) :	
Ву:	
Title:	
ATTEST:	
KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk	



3.0 EXHIBITS

(To Accompany Bid)

THIS FORM, FULLY COMPLETED, MUST BE USED FOR ALL BIDS

TO THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA:

The undersigned bidder hereby offers, in the amount stated in Exhibit 1 – Bid Form, to furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, transportation, incidental items and permits (except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents) for the construction of the Project, described as follows:

THE CITY OF ELKO EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN

The bidder agrees that the work will be performed in accordance with the Contract Documents together with incidental items necessary to complete the work to be constructed in accordance with the Contract, any and all Exhibits to the Contract, Exhibit 16 – Technical Specifications, Exhibit 8 – Project Construction Plans and also in accordance with the "Standard Specifications and Details for Public Works Construction", 2016 Revised Edition, and amendments (Orange Book) as adopted by the City of Elko, Nevada.

BASE BID SCHEDULE

Item No.	Work Description	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Bid Amount
1	Mobilization and Demobilization	1	LS		
2	Erosion Control and Demolition	1	LS		
3	FM Crossing under SR-535	1	LS		
4	FM Piping 6-inch HDPE DR21	11,525	LF		
5	FM Piping 10-inch HDPE DR21	11,520	LF		
6	FM Air Valve Manhole Assemblies	2	EA		
7	FM Termination and New Manhole	1	LS		
8	Water Main Relocation, Air Valve, and Flush Valve	1	LS		
9	LS Site Excavation, Backfill, Compaction, and Finish Grading	1	LS		=
10	LS Site Dewatering	1	LS		
11	LS Approach Manhole	1 =	LS		
12	LS Wet Well Structure	1	LS		
13	LS Dry Pit Structure	1	LS		

DIKO.

CITY OF ELKO

1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Item No.	Work Description	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Bid Amount
14	LS Pumps and Motors	3	EA		
15	LS Interior Piping and Equipment	1	LS		
16	LS Meter and Air Valve Vault	1	LS		
LS Sewer Yard Piping, Valves, and Fittings		1	LS		
18	LS Pig Launching Stations with Stainless Steel Launch Barrels	1	LS		
19	LS Water Connection, Meter, Backflow Preventer, and Yard Hydrant	1	LS		
20	LS Electrical, Power, Control, and Lighting	1	LS		
21	LS Instrumentation	1	LS		
22	LS Diesel Generator	1	LS		
23	LS Ventilation Systems	1	LS		
24	LS Site Fencing	1	LS		
25	LS Site Concrete Pads	1	LS		
26	LS Site Bollards	1	LS		
27	LS Site Aggregate Base Finish	1	LS		

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT (BID ITEMS NO. 1 – NO. 27) IN WRITTEN FORM =

ALTERNATE BID SCHEDULE

Item No.	Work Description	Quantity	Unit	Unit Price	Bid Amount
18- ALT	LS Pig Launching Stations with Epoxy Coated Steel Launch Barrels	1	LS		

If Alternate Bid Item 18-Alt is selected by the City, Bid Item 18-Alt will replace Bid Item 18 in the Base Bid Schedule.

BASE BID INSTRUCTIONS: The Base Bid amount is to be stated in legible figures only



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

and is the total amount bid for the entire contract work, including all applicable taxes. Any alteration, erasure or change must be clearly indicated and initialed by the bidder. The bidder agrees that the following, without limitation, may, in the City's discretion, constitute grounds for rejecting this bid as non-responsive: (1) one or more blanks are not filled in; (2) the bid form is not signed by an authorized representative of the bidder; (3) any words or figures are not legible; (4) there are discrepancies in the figures (to include arithmetical errors); (5) the bid is not submitted with a compliant bid bond; (6) the bidder supplies false information on this bid form; or (7) the bidder fails to provide information required by this bid form or Nevada law.

<u>COMMUNICATIONS WITH CITY:</u> All communications with the City regarding this Project until the time a contract is executed by the City shall be directed to the Office of the Elko City Clerk. In the event the City determines that a bidder has attempted to communicate with any City official or employee in violation of the preceding sentence, the City may, in its discretion, reject that bid (even after a Notice of Award has been issued) on the ground that rejection of the bid serves the public interest.

CERTIFICATION	OF	FAMILIARITY	WITH	PROJECT	AND	CONTRACT
REQUIREMENTS:	The bi	idder certifies that	it has ins	pected the loc	ation wh	ere the Project
will be performed,	has re	ad and is thoroug	hly famili	iar with the Pr	oject an	d the Contract
documents, and ha	as rec	eived and thorou	ghly revie	ewed the follo	owing Ad	ddenda and/or
other documents from	om the	City in relation to	this Proje	ect:		

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF THE ADDENDA AND OTHER DOCUMENTS REFERENCED ABOVE!

BID BOND: As a condition of the privilege to bid on this Project, the bidder shall submit with its bid a bid bond, executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the State of Nevada, in an amount equal to TEN PERCENT (10%) of the amount of the Base Bid plus all additive alternates. Should the bidder be awarded the contract and thereafter fail to enter into a written contract for the Project upon request by the City, the bidder shall thereupon forfeit and the City shall retain the full amount of the bid bond, which shall be a penalty and not damages.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

<u>CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE:</u> The bidder certifies that it holds a valid Nevada State Contractor's license, as follows:

LICENSE CLASSIFICATION:	
LICENSE NUMBER:	
CITY OF ELKO BUSINESS LICENSE: The bidder certifies that it holds a valid (City o
Elko Business License, as follows, or will obtain one prior to the time of Co execution:	ntrac
LICENSE TYPE:	
LICENSE NUMBER:	Ш

RESOLUTION: If the bidder is a limited liability company or corporation, the bidder must include with its bid an appropriate resolution authorizing the signatory to this document to sign and submit this bid, and execute a contract for performance of the Project on behalf of the Limited Liability Company or Corporation.

EFFECT OF AWARD: An award constitutes conditional acceptance of a bid, subject to the City of Elko executing and delivering to the winning bidder a fully executed copy of the Public Works Contract. Prior to the delivery of a fully executed copy of the Public Works Contract, the Elko City Council may, in its discretion, decide to reject all bids and perform the work itself, rebid the Project or not proceed with the Project.

WINNING BIDDER: The winning bidder will be determined accordance with Chapter 338 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The City reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to waive minor technical defects or irregularities in bids provided the waiver does not give a competitive advantage to one bidder over another.

PROTEST RIGHTS: Under Nevada law, a person who bids on a public works contract may file a notice of protest regarding the awarding of the contract with the authorized representative designated by the public body within five (5) business days after the date the recommendation to award a contract is issued by the public body or its authorized representative. Bidders are advised to consult Nevada Revised Statutes 338.142 for requirements applicable to protests of awards of public works contracts.





BIDDER INFORMATION AND SIGNATURE:

DATED this	day of	, 20	
NAME OF BID	DER:		
TYPE OF ENT	ITY (e.g., partnership	, corporation):	
NEVADA STA	TE CONTRACTOR'S	IN ON THE OFFICIAL WI BOARD (THIS ADDRESS ONDENCE WITH THE B ECITY):	WILL BE USE
AUTHORIZED	SIGNATURE:		
OFFICIAL TITE	_E OR CAPACITY:		
******	*End of Exhibit 1 – Bio	d Proposal Form Document *	*****



EXHIBIT 2 - BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE (To Accompany Bid Form)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THE	ESE PRESENTS, THAT WE, THE UNDERSIGNED,
	, as PRINCIPAL,
and	, as SURETY,
	ly bound unto the CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA, as OWNER in the (10%) percent of the total amount of bid equal to:
	(Written Form)
(Numbers) \$we hereby jointly and successors and assigns.	for the payment of which, well and truly to be made severally bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators

The condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal is herewith submitting to the CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA, a certain Bid for the:

THE CITY OF ELKO

EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN

NOW, THEREFORE,

- (a) If the Principal shall not withdraw said Bid within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening of the same, or
- (b) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,
- (c) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall within twenty (20) calendar days after receipt of Notice of Award, execute and deliver a contract in the form of Contract specified in the Contract Documents (properly completed in accordance with said Bid) and shall furnish a bond with good and sufficient surety or sureties for his faithful performance of said Contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect and the Principal and Surety will pay unto the Owner the penal sum hereof; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this obligation as herein





stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the OWNER may accept such Bid; and said Surety does not hereby waive notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto se seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate saffixed and these presents to be signed by their proper officers this20	seals to be hereto
PRINCIPAL:	
SURETY:	
BY:	
(SEAL)	



EXHIBIT 3 - EXPERIENCE QUALIFICATIONS (To Accompany Bid Form)

By signing this form, the Bidder verifies that he/she has been engaged in the contracting business under the present business name for the previous five (5) years.

The Bidder must have previous experience in work similar to the Project. In order to demonstrate this to the City, the Bidder must provide references and contract amounts for previous projects of similar type and complexity to the Project. These references and contract amounts must have been parties to the same contracts as Bidder with respect to projects of this type.

Similar Projects

YEAR	CONTRACT	TYPE OF WORK	LOCATION & FOR WHOM PERFORMED	CONTACT NAME	PHONE #
		3			

In addition to the above references (unless the same), the Bidder must list references and contract amounts for recent projects that have been satisfactorily completed, together with the corresponding information requested in the following table:

Recent Projects

YEAR	CONTRACT AMOUNT	TYPE OF WORK	LOCATION & FOR WHOM PERFORMED	CONTACT	PHONE #
	-		a. 11.		



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

By signing this form, the Bidder verifies that he/she has never failed to satisfactorily complete a contract to which he/she was a party, except as follows (attached additional sheets if required):

The following is a list of property, plant and equipment owne definitely available for use on the proposed work if needed:	d by the	Bidder	which is
Attach additional sheets if required.			



EXHIBIT 4 - DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS

FIVE PERCENT LIST NRS 338.141(1)(b) (To Accompany Bid)

State law requires that the prime contractor on this project submit a "5% List" with his or her bid. The 5% List must include the name of the prime contractor <u>and</u> the name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work for which the prime contractor and (if applicable) the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding 5 percent of the prime contractor's total bid.

A PRIME CONTRACTOR BIDDING ON A PUBLIC WORK <u>MUST</u> INCLUDE HIS OR HER NAME ON THE 5% LIST!

IMPORTANT: A BID WITHOUT A TIMELY, COMPLETE AND CORRECT 5% LIST THAT COMPLIES WITH NRS 338.141 WILL BE AUTOMATICALLY DEEMED NOT RESPONSIVE!

The 5% List must also contain a description of the labor or portion of the work which the prime contractor will perform and which each first tier subcontract will provide to the prime contractor. In order to help you complete the 5% List, the City is providing you with this form.

IMPORTANT: THE PRIME CONTRACTOR MUST BE INCLUDED ON THIS LIST OR THE BID WILL BE REJECTED!

IMPORTANT: IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORANGE BOOK, THE PRIME CONTRACTOR MUST PERFORM AT LEAST 50% OF THE WORK!

Name of Prime Contractor/First Tier Subcontractor(s)	Contractor's License Number	Description of Labor or Work	Percentage of Work Done

(Use additional sheets if necessary)



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

ONE PERCENT LIST NRS 338.141(1)(b)(2) (To Accompany Bid)

State law requires that if a prime contractor's bid is one of the three lowest bids, within 2 hours after bid opening the prime contractor must submit a "1% List" if the prime contractor is employing a first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work who will <u>not</u> be paid an amount exceeding \$100,000.

IMPORTANT: A BID WITHOUT A TIMELY, COMPLETE AND CORRECT 1% LIST THAT COMPLIES WITH NRS 338.141 WILL BE AUTOMATICALLY DEEMED NOT RESPONSIVE!

The 1% List must contain the name and contractor's license number of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid 1 percent of the prime contractor's total bid or \$50,000, whichever is greater.

A prime contractor must include his or her name on the 1% List, together with:

- (1) a description of the labor or portion of the work that the prime contractor will perform; or
- (2) a statement that the prime contractor will perform all work other than that being performed by a subcontractor listed on the 5% List or the 1% List.

The 1% List must contain a description of the labor or portion of the work which each first tier subcontract will provide to the prime contractor. In order to help you complete the 1% List, the City is providing you with this form.

IMPORTANT: THE PRIME CONTRACTOR MUST BE INCLUDED ON THIS LIST!

IMPORTANT: IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORANGE BOOK, THE PRIME CONTRACTOR MUST PERFORM AT LEAST 50% OF THE WORK!

Contractor's License Number	Description of Labor or Work	Percentage of Work Done

(Use additional sheets if necessary)





EXHIBIT 5 - AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION (To Accompany Bid)

STATE OF)	
COUNTY OF)SS.)	
ا, affidavit and the		(Name of party signing this
Proposal Form)depose and say:		(Title), being duly sworn to
	otherwise taken any a	(Name of person, firm indirectly, entered into agreement ction in restraint of free competitive
Signature:		
Title:		
Sworn to before me this	day of	, 20
Signature:		_
Title:		_
(SEAL)		



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

EXHIBIT 6 - CERTIFICATION OF BIDDER REGARDING PENALTIES FOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH NEVADA PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS (To Accompany Bid)

The undersigned bidder, proposed contractor or subcontractor certifies and acknowledges that:

- 1. This contract is for a public work project as set forth in Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 338.
- 2. Pursuant to NRS 338.060, a contractor engaged on public works shall forfeit, as a penalty to the public body in behalf of which the contract has been made and awarded to the contractor, not less than \$20 nor more than \$50 for each calendar day or portion thereof that each workman employed on the public work:
 - (a) Is paid less than the designated rate for any work done under the contract, by the contractor or any subcontractor under him.
 - (b) Is not reported to the City of Elko as required pursuant to NRS 338.070.
- 3. If a penalty is imposed pursuant to this section, the costs of the proceeding, including investigative costs and attorney's fees, may be recovered by the labor commissioner.

This project is estimated to be at or above the \$100,000 threshold and therefore requires that prevailing wages to be paid.

Name of Bidder		
Name and Title of Authorized Representative		
Signature	Date	





EXHIBIT 7 - FRINGE BENEFIT PLAN, FUND OR PROGRAM DISBURSEMENT INFORMATION

CONTR	RACTOR:	
CONTA	ACT:	PHONE:
Classifi	cation	
Paid pe	r hour	Name, Address and Telephone Number of Fund Manager
\$	Vacation	
\$	Health and Welfare	
\$	Pension	
\$	Apprentice/training	
\$	Other	
Classifi	cation	
Paid pe	<u>r hour</u> Name, Address and Te	lephone <u>Number of Fund Manager</u>
\$	Vacation	
c	Lloolah and Markeys	
\$	Health and Welfare	



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

\$ Pension	
\$ Apprentice/training	
\$ Other	





EXHIBIT 8 - DRAWINGS (PROJECT CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS)

See additional attachement





KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

EXHIBIT 9 - PERFORMANCE BOND

That we		
	(name of	contractor)
are a		
arc a	(corporation, partnership	p or individual)
hereinafter called "	Principal" and	
		(Surety)
of	, State of	
	ne "Surety", are held and fi A, hereinafter called "Owr	irmly bound unto the CITY OF ELKO, of ELKO ner" in the penal sum of:
		Dollars
	(Writte	n Form)
executors, administ the faithful performat the Owner, dated t	hich sum well and truly trators and successors, joi ance of a certain written Chisday of	in lawful money of the United States, for to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, intly and severally, firmly by these presents for ontract entered into between the Principal and, 20, a copy of which is a part hereof as if fully copied herein, for the
		STATION & FORCE MAIN

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITIONS OF THIS OBLIGATION ARE SUCH, that, if the Principal shall in all respects, well, truly and faithfully perform such contract and the Principals, duties, all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the Owner, with or without notice to the Surety, and if the Principal shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the Owner all outlay and expense which the Owner may incur in making good any default, and if their Principal shall save, indemnify and keep harmless the Owner against all loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgments, costs and expenses which may accrue against the Owner in consequence of the awarding of said Contract, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any wise affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in three (3) counterparts, each one

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is of which shall be deemed an original, the _	s executed in three (3) o	counterparts, eac, 20_
PRINCIPAL:		
BY:		
ADDRESS:		
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:		
ATTEST:		
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY:		
(SEAL)		
WITNESS AS TO PRINCIPAL:		
ADDRESS:		
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:		
SURETY:		
77.4		





ATTORNEY-IN-FACT

ADDRESS:_		
CITY, STATI	TE & ZIP CODE:	
ATTEST:		
SURETY SE	ECRETARY:	
(SEAL)		
WITNESS A	AS TO SURETY:	
ADDRESS:_		
CITY, STATI	TE & ZIP CODE:	

If Contractor in Partnership, all partners should execute bond.

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State of Nevada.





EXHIBIT 10 - PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN E	I THESE PRESENTS.	
That we		
	(name of contr	ractor)
are a		
	(corporation, partnership or i	individual)
hereinafter called "I	Principal" and	
		(Surety)
of	, State of	
COUNTY, NEVADA	A, hereinafter called "Owner"	
		Dollars
well and truly to be	_) in lawful money of the Unite made, we bind ourselves, our and severally, firmly by these	ed States, for the payment of which sun r heirs, executors, administrators and presents.
into a certain cont	ract with the Owner, dated the s incorporated hereby by refe	uch that Whereas, the Principal entered e day of, 20 erence, and made a part hereof as if fully

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations supplying or furnishing labor or materials to the Principal, or to any of the Principals' subcontractors in the prosecution of the work provided for in said Contract, and any authorized extension or modification thereof, including but not limited to any amounts due for materials, supplies, lubricants, oil, gasoline, fuels, repairs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection with the construction of such work, and all insurance premiums on said work, and for all labor, performed in such work whether by, to, or for Principal or subcontractor or subcontractors of the Principal, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

The Principal and Surety hereby further bind themselves, their successors, heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, jointly and severally, to repay the owner any sum which the owner may be compelled to pay as a result of non-payment for labor or material



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

furnished for the work embraced by said Contract.

The Principal and Surety hereby further agree that not only said Owner may sue on this bond, but that subject to the provisions hereinafter set out, any individual, firm, partnership, association or corporation, (hereinafter called claimant), who has performed labor or furnished materials to or for the Principal or its subcontractor or subcontractors in the prosecution of the work provided for in the Contract for which this bond is given, and who has not been paid in full before the expiration of ninety (90) calendar days after the date on which the claimant performs the last of such labor or furnished the last of such materials for which the claimant claims payment, may bring an action on this bond in the claimant's own name to recover any amount due the claimant for such labor or materials, and may prosecute such action to final judgment and have execution on the judgment.

Provided, however, that any claimant who has a direct contractual relationship with any subcontractor of the Principal, but no contractual relationship, express or implied, with such Principal, may bring an action on this bond only:

- A. If the claimant has within thirty (30) calendar days after furnishing the first of such materials or performing the first of such labor, served on the Principal a written notice which shall inform the Principal of the nature of the materials being furnished or to be furnished, or the labor performed or to be performed, and identifying the person contracting for such labor or materials and the site for the performance of such labor or furnishing such materials; and
- B. After giving written notice to such principal within ninety (90) calendar days from the date on which the claimant performed the last of the labor or furnished the list of such materials for which the claimant claims payment.

Each written notice shall state with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the name of the person for whom the work was performed or the material supplied, and shall be served by being sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, in an envelope addressed to such Principal at any place in which the Principal maintains an office or conducts business, or at the Principal's residence.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Principal shall abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed	d in three (3) counte	erparts, each one
of which shall be deemed an original, on this the	day of	, 20
PRINCIPAL:		
BY:		
ADDRESS:		
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:		
ATTEST:		
PRINCIPAL SECRETARY:		(SEAL)
WITNESS AS TO PRINCIPAL:		
ADDRESS:		
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:		_
SURETY:		
BY:ATTORNEY-IN-FACT	_	
ADDRESS:		
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:		
ATTEST:		
SURETY SECRETARY:		
(SEAL)		





WITNESS AS TO SURETY:	
ADDRESS:	
CITY, STATE & ZIP CODE:	
	_

NOTE: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract.

- (1) Correct Name of Contractor.
- (2) A Corporation, a Partnership or an Individual, as case may be.
- (3) Correct Name of Surety.

If Contractor in Partnership, all partners should execute bond.

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State of Nevada.





EXHIBIT 11 - NOTICE OF AWARD

TO:	DATE:	
	PROJECT:	
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that t	he City of Elko has accepted your bid for the above	
Project in the amount of \$, which amount includes the	
Additive Alternates identified in this N	otice of Award	

Within **TWENTY** (20) calendar days of receipt this Notice of Award, you must complete, sign and deliver to the City of Elko: (1) this Notice of Award with the fully executed Acceptance of Notice; (2) the Public Works Contract, executed by a person authorized to sign on your behalf; (3) the Performance Bond; (4) the Payment Bond; and (5) evidence of all insurance required to perform the Project. If you fail to meet any of these requirements, the City of Elko will be entitled, in its discretion, to consider all of your rights arising out of its acceptance of your bid as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your Bid Bond, entitling the City of Elko to the full amount of the Bid Bond. The City of Elko will also be entitled to such other rights as may be allowed by law.

You are further advised that this Award constitutes conditional acceptance of your bid, subject to the City of Elko executing and delivering to you a fully executed copy of the Public Works Contract. Prior to the delivery of a fully executed copy of the Public Works Contract, the Elko City Council may, in its discretion, decide to reject all bids (including your bid) and perform the work itself, rebid the Project or not proceed with the Project.

If indicated below, the scope of this Project is subject to the following Additive Alternates (attach additional sheets if necessary):





ALTERNATE NUMBER	DESCRIPTION	AMOUNT



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

All communications with the City regarding this Project through the time a contract is executed by the City shall be directed to the Office of the Elko City Clerk. In the event the City determines that a bidder has attempted to communicate with any City official or employee in violation of the preceding sentence, the City may, in its discretion, reject that bid (even after a Notice of Award has been issued) on the ground that rejection of the bid serves the public interest.

DATED this day of, 20	
CITY OF ELKO	
Ву:	
Title:	
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE	
Receipt of this Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged this day of 20	
CONTRACTOR (BIDDER):	
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE:	_
PRINTED NAME OF SIGNATORY:	
TITLE OF SIGNATORY:	_





EXHIBIT 12 - NOTICE TO PROCEED

To:	DATE:
	DATE: PROJECT: EXIT 298 SEWER LIFT
	STATION & FORCE MAIN
You are hereby notified to commence work i	n accordance with the Agreement dated the
day of, 20, on or 20, and you are to complete construction days from the written notification to proceed.	One Hundred and Eighty (180) calenda
Contractor:	
By:Authorized Company Representative	DATE:
Authorized Company Representative	
Title:	
Owner: CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA	
By:	DATE:
Title:	

RETURN SIGNED COPY TO:

City of Elko Clerk's Office 1751 College Avenue Elko, Nevada 89801

along with aforementioned document(s) requested.





EXHIBIT 13- STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION (ORANGE BOOK), 2016 REVISED EDITION Or – 2018 REVISIONS

A hard copy of this document is not attached to the Contract. The complete document can be viewed at the following URL:

http://rtcwashoe.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/2016-Version-Revision-No.-9.pdf



EXHIBIT 14 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS:

The "STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION", 2016 Revised Edition, (Orange Book) as amended by the City of Elko shall be the Project Specifications. All sections shall apply except as specifically deleted or modified by these Supplementary Conditions or the Technical Specifications. Wherever these specifications refer to the agency, this reference shall mean the CITY OF ELKO and wherever these specifications refer to the Engineer, this reference shall mean the City or authorized representative.

LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS, HEALTH, SAFETY AND OSHA TRAINING REQUIREMENTS:

Laws, Rules and Regulations

All workmanship and materials shall comply with all applicable laws, codes, rules and regulations, and the Contractor shall comply with all safety regulations which are applicable to his work, and particular attention for applicability shall be given to the United States Department of Labor Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards, and the regulations of the State of Nevada in which the job is located. The responsibility for complying with all such laws, codes, rules and regulations, and safety standards shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. If the City is fined for any Contractor violations, these costs will be fully reimbursed by the Contractor.

Safety

In accordance with all OSHA safety regulations (29 CRF Part 1910 - 1926 inclusive) and the City of Elko's Safety and Confined Space programs, the Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all personnel and property during the performance of the work: to include supplying their personnel with proper personnel protective equipment (PPE), first aid kit, fire extinguishers, confined space equipment and air monitors, underground metal utility detectors, tools, necessary equipment and materials. This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours on City of Elko property.

The City will require of all Contractors the 30-hour supervisor and 10-hour employee OSHA certification training in CFR 1926 Construction Safety and Health before the work begins. All Contractors shall be responsible for the required certified training on equipment, tools, confined space and safety training, PPE, etc. The Contractor will produce these training documents as requested by the City.

Health and Safety in Employment

All applicable provisions in NRS Chapter 618 shall be incorporated in the construction practices for all employees directly engaged in the completion of any City of Elko project(s).



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Apprenticeship Utilization Act (Senate Bill 207 (2019)).

The following statutory provisions pertaining to the use of apprentices apply to public works contracts:

- 1. A contractor or subcontractor engaged in vertical construction who employs a worker on a public work pursuant to NRS 338.040 shall use one or more apprentices for at least 10 percent of the total hours of labor worked for each apprenticed craft or type of work to be performed on the public work for which more than three workers are employed.
- 2. A contractor or subcontractor engaged in horizontal construction who employs a worker on a public work pursuant to NRS 338.040 shall use one or more apprentices for at least 3 percent of the total hours of labor worked for each apprenticed craft or type of work to be performed on the public work for which more than three workers are employed.
- 3. On or after January 1, 2021, the Labor Commissioner, in collaboration with the State Apprenticeship Council, may adopt regulations to increase the percentage of total hours of labor required to be performed by an apprentice pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 of Senate Bill 207 by not more than 2 percentage points.
- 4. A contractor or subcontractor engaged on a public work is not required to use an apprentice in a craft or type of work performed in a jurisdiction recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council as not having apprentices in that craft or type of work.
- 5. The City may, upon the request of a contractor or subcontractor, submit a request to the Labor Commissioner to modify or waive the percentage of hours of labor provided by one or more apprentices required pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 for good cause. The City must submit such a request, before an advertisement for bids has been placed, the opening of bids or the award of a contract for a public work or after the public body has commenced work on the public work. Such a request must include any supporting documentation, including, without limitation, proof of denial of or failure to approve a request for apprentices pursuant to subparagraph (3) of paragraph (d) of subsection 10 of Senate Bill 207.
- 6. The Labor Commissioner shall issue a determination of whether to grant a modification or waiver requested by the City within 15 days after the receipt of such request. The Labor Commissioner may grant such a request if he or she makes a finding that there is good cause to modify or waive the percentage of hours of labor provided by one or more apprentices required pursuant to subsection 1 or 2 of Senate Bill 207.
- 7. The City, a contractor or a subcontractor may request a hearing on the determination of the Labor Commissioner within 10 days after receipt of the determination of the Labor Commissioner. The hearing must be conducted in accordance with



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

regulations adopted by the Labor Commissioner. If the Labor Commissioner does not receive a request for a hearing pursuant to subsection 8 of Senate Bill 207, the determination of the Labor Commissioner is a final decision for the purposes of judicial review pursuant to chapter 233B of NRS.

8. A contractor or subcontractor engaged on a public work shall enter into an apprenticeship agreement for all apprentices required to be used in the construction of a public work. If the Labor Commissioner granted a modification or waiver pursuant to subsection 7 of Senate Bill 207 because the Labor Commissioner finds that a request for apprentices was denied or the request was not approved within 5 business days as described in subparagraph (3) of paragraph (d) of subsection 10 of Senate Bill 207 and apprentices are later provided, then the contractor or subcontractor shall enter into an apprenticeship agreement for all apprentices later provided.

9. As used in Senate Bill 207:

- (a) "Apprentice" means a person enrolled in an apprenticeship program recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council.
- (b) "Apprenticed craft or type of work" means a craft or type of work for which there is an existing apprenticeship program recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council.
- (c) "Apprenticeship program" means an apprenticeship program recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council.

(d) "Good cause" means:

- (1) There are no apprentices available from an apprenticeship program within the jurisdiction where the public work is to be completed as recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council;
- (2) The contractor or subcontractor is required to perform uniquely complex or hazardous tasks on the public work that require the skill and expertise of a greater percentage of journeymen; or
- (3) The contractor or subcontractor has requested apprentices from an apprenticeship program and the request has been denied or the request has not been approved within 5 business days.

The term "good cause" does not include the refusal of a contractor or subcontractor to enter into an apprenticeship agreement pursuant to subsection 9 of Senate Bill 207.

(e) "Journeyman" has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 624.260.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

(f) "State Apprenticeship Council" means the State Apprenticeship Council created by NRS 610.030.





EXHIBIT 15 - SPECIAL OR SUPPLEMENTAL PROVISIONS See additional attachements.





EXHIBIT 16 - TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

See additional attachments.





EXHIBIT 17 - PREVAILING WAGE RATES – ELKO COUNTY OR DAVIS-BACON (ATTACHED)



EXHIBIT 18 – PREFERENTIAL BIDDER STATUS AFFIDAVIT (To Accompany Bid)

PREFERENTIAL BIDDER STATUS AFFIDAVIT FOR BIDS SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NRS 338.0117 VALUED IN EXCESS OF \$250,000.00, CONTRACTS INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS AT RISK, AND DESIGNBUILD CONTRACTS

Although the City of Elko prefers this form is submitted with the bid response, this form may be submitted within two (2) hours of the bid opening.

Note: The Certificate of Eligibility for Preferential Bidder Status issued by the State Contractor's Board <u>must be</u> submitted with the bid response.

l, ("Affiant"),	on	behalf	of
			("Contractor"),
	t in order to be in complian		
receive a preference	e in bidding for Project N	lo	, Project Name
("Project"), cer	tify that for the duration of	the project, collective	ely, and not on any
specific day:			

- a) At least 50 percent of the workers employed on the public work, including, without limitation, any employees of the contractor, applicant or design-build team and of any subcontractor engaged on the public work, will hold a valid driver's license or identification card issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles of the State of Nevada:
- b) All vehicles used primarily for the public work will be:
 - 1. Registered and partially apportioned to Nevada pursuant to the International Registration Plan, as adopted by the Department of Motor Vehicles pursuant to NRS 706.826; or,
 - 2. Registered in this State;
- c) If applying to receive a preference in bidding pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 338.1727 or subsection 2 of NRS 408.3886, at least 50 percent of the design professionals working on the public work, including, without limitation, employees of the design-build team and of any subcontractor or consultant engaged in the design of the public work, will have a valid driver's license or identification card issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles of the State of Nevada; and,
- d) The contractor, applicant or design-build team and any subcontractor engaged on the public work will maintain and make available for inspection within this State his or her records concerning payroll relating to the public work.



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

If the Contractor fails to comply with any requirement of this Affidavit, a public body may recover, by civil action against the party responsible for a failure to comply with a requirement of this affidavit, a penalty as described below for a failure to comply with a requirement of this affidavit. If a public body recovers a penalty pursuant to this subsection, the public body shall report to the State Contractors' Board the date of the failure to comply, the name of each entity which failed to comply and the cost of the contract to which the entity that failed to comply was a party. The Board shall maintain this information for not less than 6 years. Upon request, the Board shall provide this information to any public body or its authorized representative.

If a contractor, applicant or design-build team submits this affidavit, receives a preference in bidding described in this affidavit and is awarded the contract as a result of that preference, the contract between the contractor, applicant or design-build team and the public body, each contract between the contractor, applicant or design-build team and a subcontractor and each contract between a subcontractor and a lower tier subcontractor must provide that:

- a) If a party to the contract causes the contractor, applicant or design-build team to fail to comply with a requirement of this affidavit, the party is liable to the public body for a penalty in the amount of 1 percent of the cost of the largest contract to which he or she is a party;
- b) The right to recover the amount determined pursuant to paragraph (a) by the public body pursuant to this affidavit may be enforced by the public body directly against the party that caused the failure to comply with a requirement of this affidavit; and,
- c) No other party to the contract is liable to the public body for a penalty.

By:		Title:		
(Print nam	ne of Affiant)			
Signature of Affiant: Date:				
Signed and sworn to (20, by				
State of)			
County of)ss.)	Notary Signature STAMP & SEAL		



1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801 (775) 777-7100 * www.elkocity.com

Proof of Authorization to Sign Affidavit

The person must establish his/her actual authority to act on behalf of the business organization. The individual must be the person indicated in the table below and provide written documentation clearly indicating the person's position within that business organization. If the individual signing the Affidavit is an employee of the business organization, written documentation, on organization letterhead, clearly indicating the person's authority to act on behalf of the business organization must be provided. The written documentation must be signed by the authorized person identified on the table.

If the individual making application for the business organization is not one of the persons identified in the table or an authorized employee, a valid power of attorney executed by an authorized person on behalf of the business organization must be provided. The power of attorney must be made not more than 90 days before the Affidavit is signed.

BUSINESS ENTITY	PERSON WHO HAS AUTHORITY TO COMPLETE AFFIDAVIT	
Sole Proprietorship	Sole Proprietor	
Partnership	A Partner	
Corporation	Director, if authorized Executive Officer as indicated in the Article of Incorporation	
Limited Liabi Company	Member, if Member-Managed LLC Manager, if Manager-Managed LLC	





EXHIBIT 19 - CERTIFICATION NOT TO ENGAGE IN BOYCOTT OF ISRAEL (NRS 332.065) (Must Accompany Contract Documents)

The undersigned contractor hereby certifies that he/she/it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the contract not to engage in, a boycott of Israel.

- 1. "Boycott of Israel" means, except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, refusing to deal or conduct business with, abstaining from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action that is intended to limit commercial relations with:
 - (a) Israel; or
- (b) A person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by Israel, if such an action is taken in a manner that discriminates on the basis of nationality, national origin or religion.
- 2. The term "boycott of Israel" does not include an action that is described in subsection 1 if the action:
 - (a) Is based on a bona fide business or economic reason;
- (b) Is taken pursuant to a boycott against a public entity of Israel if the boycott is applied in a nondiscriminatory manner; or
- (c) Is taken in compliance with or adherence to calls for a boycott of Israel if that action is authorized in 50 U.S.C. § 4607 or any other federal or state law.

CONTRACTOR	₹:	
By:		
Title:		
Date:		